
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, January 10, 2022, 6:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

Meeting called to order  
 
 Invocation given by Adam Elenbaas 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approve Agenda 
 Consent Agenda 

o Approval of the December 29, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
o Bills 
o Interim Bills 

 For information 
o Financial Report 
o Minutes of the January 3, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting 
o Fire Department December Monthly Report 

 Public Hearings 
 Public Comments 
 Guest Speakers  
 Action Items 
 Discussion Items 

o Budget Amendment 
 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
 Future Agenda Items 
 Adjournment 

 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 4 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

DECEMBER SESSION 2nd DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Wednesday December 29, 
2021, at 8:00 a.m. and was called to order at 8:01 a.m. by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Kraker; Ms. Hansen; Mr. Vander Wall; Ms. 
Vander Veen; and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 
 
Absent: Mr. Murillo (1) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Sergeant Cal Keuning, Sheriff Department; Tim 
VanBennekom, Finance Director; Mary Cook, Library Director; Kevin 
Yeomans, Assistant Administrator; and Chad Doornbos, Public Utilities 
Superintendent. 
 
Mr. Zeinstra pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 21-233 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve the agenda of today with the following 

amendments: add “Kevin Yeomans, Assistant Administrator: Fire Station 
Updates” to Guest Speakers. The motion passed. 

 
BOT 21-234 Ms. Vander Veen moved to relocate “Approval of the December 13, 2021, Regular 

Board Meeting Minutes” from the Consent Agenda and move it to Action Items 
and to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 

 
1. To approve the general claims in the amount of $349,750.15 and no interim 

payments, as presented by the summary report for December 30, 2021.  
 
2. To approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to sign Resolution 2021-

27: 2022 Board Meeting Dates (Corrected Version); a resolution establishing 
the 2022 Board of Trustee meeting dates and time. 

 
The motion passed.  
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Items Received for Information 
 

1. Financial Report 
 

2. Cancelled: December 6, 2021, Planning Commission Meeting 
 
3. Wombat Award- Tammy Walker 
 
Public Hearings- None 
 
Public Comments and Communications - None 
 

BOT 21-235 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Guest Speakers 
 

Mary Cook, Library Director, provided an overview and explanation of the 
new full-time Circulation Assistant II position. She highlighted how this 
position will benefit our library patrons, and the team overall. Ms. Cook 
distinguished various responsibilities in the job description that qualify this 
position as a level two Circulation Assistant.  
 
Kevin Yeomans, Assistant Administrator provided a status update of the new 
fire station. He indicated this project will go out to bid mid-January 2022. 
Total costs estimated for this project are $6,900,000.00. A total of 
$286,000.00 was spent between 2018 – 2020 on planning and prep work; 
$638,832.00 was spent in 2021 on design finalization and starting work 
phase; and a remaining $6,015,057.00 will be spent in 2022 for final 
execution of the project. Construction Simplified will be monitoring potential 
impacts such as supply chain woes and steel costs closely to try to mitigate 
negative impacts. The project is estimated to be completed by 
Spring/Summer of 2023. 
 
Several board members had questions and comments. 
 

BOT 21-236 Mr. Elenbaas moved to amend the agenda as follows: to add “Approval of 
December 13, 2021, Closed Session Minutes” and “Approval of Circulation 
Assistant II Job Description” to Action Items. The motion passed.  

 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 Action Items 
 
BOT 21-237 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the Library Fines and Fees Schedule as 

presented. The motion passed. 
 

   
BOT 21-238 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to 

sign resolution 2021-39: End of Year Budget Amendment; a resolution 
amending various line items within the budget. The motion passed as shown 
by the following votes:  
YEAS: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Kraker; Mr. Vander Wall; Ms. Hansen; Ms. Vander 
Veen and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 
 

 NAYS: None (0) 
 
 ABSENT: Mr. Murillo (1) 

 
BOT 21-239 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve and authorize the Supervisor to execute 

and sign the necessary paperwork to opt into the National Opioid Settlement. 
The motion passed.  

   
BOT 21-240 Ms. Kraker moved to approve the December 13, 2021, Regular Board 

Meeting Minutes with the following amendments: to correct the spelling of 
Ray Nada to “Ray Nadda” on action BOT 21-226; and to clarify the closed 
session discussion of pending litigation by adding “Specifically the Miller et. 
al. v. Allendale Charter Township and Miller et. al. v. Jody Hansen matters” to 
action BOT 21-231. The motion passed.  

 
BOT 21-241 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the Minutes of the December 13, 2021, 

Closed Session meeting. The motion passed. 
 
BOT 21-242 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the Circulation Assistant II Job 

Description with necessary typo corrections as discussed. The motion passed. 
 

 Discussion Items- None 
 
Public Comments and Communications- None 
 

BOT 21-243 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 Board Comments 
 
 Mr. Elenbaas congratulated Chad Doornbos, Public Utilities Superintendent on 

obtaining his Class A Certification from the State of Michigan, Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes and Energy, in Sewage Treatment Operators 
License. This great achievement took a lot of hard work and dedication.  

 
 Mr. Zeinstra sought clarification and feedback from the board on the Tree 

Ordinance that the board returned to the Planning Commission from a few 
meetings back.  

 
 Ms. Vander Veen requested clarification on 2022 meetings start time. She 

thanked the board and the team at Allendale Township and said 2021 has 
been a great year working with such an amazing team.  

 
BOT 21-244 Mr. Zeinstra moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:09 a.m. The motion passed.  
 
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 
 
 
 













ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

January 3, 2022 
7:00 p.m.   

Allendale Township Public Meeting Room  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order 

2. Roll Call: 
Present: Longcore, Zuniga, Zeinstra, Chapla, Westerling 
Absent: Adams and Nadda 
Staff Present: Planner Greg Ransford 
Public: Terry Van Dyken, Terry Vissers, Curtis Moran, Chris Adamson 

3. Received for Information:  

4. Motion by Zeinstra to approve the December 20, 2021 Planning Commission Minutes as presented. 
Seconded by Zuniga. Approved 5-0 

5. Motion by Longcore to approve the January 3, 2022 Planning Commission Agenda with the change of 
moving New Business ahead of Old Business. Seconded by Zeinstra. Approved 5-0 

6. Public Comments for non-public hearing item: 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. 
Terry Van Dyken introduced the project proposed to the Township Board for moving and preserving 
an Allendale One-Room Schoolhouse. Looking for input and expertise from the Planning 
Commission. 
Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section 

7. Public Hearings: None 

8. Site Plan Review: None 

9. Old Business 
A. Annual Mining Report 

• Bliss Street 
Curtis Moran reported that they are wrapping up this project and are waiting on final 
numbers for water levels. Consensus from the Commissioners was that they were satisfied 
with the report. 

B. Text Amendment 

• Alternative Energy 
Planner Ransford introduced the sample language provided from the Tallmadge Charter 
Township Zoning Ordinance.  
Commissioners discussed the options of having different ordinances or different sections 
within a single ordinance to regulate the different types of alternative energies. 
Commissioners directed Planner Ransford to continue to draft language specific to 
Allendale. 



C. Election of Officers 
Motion by Westerling to nominate Mr. Longcore as Chair, Mr. Chapla as Vice-Chair and Mr. 
Zuniga as Secretary. Seconded by Zeinstra. Approved 5-0 

10. New Business: 
A. Text Amendments 

• Section 3.19 – Tree Preservation 
Planner Ransford had requested more information from the Board as to why this 
amendment had been sent back to the Planning Commission for revisions and was told that 
some Board members saw it as an overreach of government. Mr. Zeinstra confirmed that 
this was the case. Commissioners commented that they weren’t looking to regulate the 
cutting of every tree, but just be able to oversee the clear-cutting a property for 
development. 

• Section 24.06H – Waste Disposal Facilities 
Commissioners discussed the reasoning behind the updated language. 
Motion by Zeinstra to recommend to the Board the approval of the revision of Section 
24.06H. Seconded by Zuniga. Approved 5-0 

• Section 24.06J – Building Appearance 
Commissioners discussed and concurred that this language should not include duplexes. 
Motion by Zeinstra to recommend to the Board the approval of the revision of Section 
24.06J regarding building appearance regarding multi-family dwellings. Seconded by 
Westerling. Approved 5-0 

• Zero-yard setbacks 
Commissioners directed Planner Ransford to schedule the public hearing for this 
amendment. 

11. Public Comments 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section. No comments were made, and he closed 
the public comment section. 

12. Township Board Reports 
Mr. Zeinstra reported that the Board had their last meeting for 2021 and approved some end of the 
year budget items, updated Library fines and fees and the Township approved opting into the National 
Opioid Settlement. 

13. Commissioner and Staff Comments: None 

14. Chairperson Longcore adjourned the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 

 
 

Next meeting January 17, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 
Planning Commission Minutes respectfully submitted by Kelli McGovern 

◊ 































Fund Name: General Fund Date: 1/1/2022
Department Number: 248 Budget Entry #:

Department Name: Administration Amendment #: 1
Requested by: Kevin Yeomans

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Transfer In

TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENDITURES:
Contracted Services $80,069.00 $31,792.00 $111,861.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $80,069.00 $0.00 $31,792.00 $111,861.00
Revenue Over/(Under) 

Expenditures ($80,069.00) ($111,861.00)

Description

Server $24,000.00
Server Disater Recovery $6,183.00
Server Security $1,609.00

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request

Department Capital/One-Time Costs = $26,388 Total Project Capital = $52,775

Department Recurring Costs = $5404 Total Recurring Costs = $10,808

To move off the County's system Allendale needs to acquire a server as well as the 
security and back up systems that will allow us to operate effectively and securely. 
The server will serve both the Township and our Public Utilities with costs being split 



Fund Name: Water & Sewer Date: 1/1/2022
Department Number: 248 Budget Entry #:

Department Name: Administration Amendment #: 2
Requested by: Kevin Yeomans, Chad Doornbos

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Transfer In

TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENDITURES:
Contracted Services $27,361.00 $31,792.00 $59,153.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $27,361.00 $0.00 $31,792.00 $59,153.00
Revenue Over/(Under) 

Expenditures ($27,361.00) ($59,153.00)

Description

Server $24,000.00
Server Disater Recovery $6,183.00
Server Security $1,609.00

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request

Department Capital/One-Time Costs = $26,388 Total Project Capital = $52,775

Department Recurring Costs = $5404 Total Recurring Costs = $10,808

To move off the County's system Allendale needs to acquire a server as well as the security and 
back up systems that will allow us to operate effectively and securely. The server will serve both 
the Township and our Public Utilities with costs being split 50/50. 


	12-29-2021 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	DECEMBER SESSION 2nd DAY

	1 Budget Amendment Request.pdf
	GF

	2 Server Budget Amendment Request.pdf
	APU


